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Made in France before 1752, this hand -operated stocking—frame
was brought to Germantown in 1763 by a German hosiery —knitter,
Godfrey Miller. It remained in the Miller family till 1950.

Loaned by Goldie Paley Design Center, Philadelphia College of
Textiles and Science; reproduced with permission.
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THE MONTIER FAMILY OF GERMANTOWN:
A Chapter in African-American History
by Reginald H. Pitts

African—Americans have been a part of Germantown's
history for all its three-~hundred-plus years. What follows is
an account of one early family. The Montier family had long
been resident in nearby Cheltenham Township in Montgom=-
ery County. In 1746, Richard Morrey, a wealthy landowner
(and the son of the first mayor of Philadelphia, Humphrey
Morrey), deeded to "His Negro woman Mooney otherwise
known as Cremona Morrey" 198 acres of land in the far
northwestern corner of the township, in what is now the Edge
Hill section of Glenside. This was done in recognition of
"the good and faithful service unto him performed,” which
included bearing five children.

One of their daughters, who was also named Cremona,?‘
married, about 1765, a man named John Montier, who may
have been a refugee from the French West Indies. They
would have four sons: Joseph (c.1768-1842); Solomon
(1770-¢.1855); Robert (c.1773-1815); and Hiram (1780-
1861). The Montiers lived on a portion of the original grant;
their house, although enlarged, remodeled and modernized,
still stands at 312 Limekiln Pike in Glenside.

Hiram Montier, the youngest son, was apprenticed to a
shoemaker, but turned his hand to a number of endeavors
during his long l1fe He married his first cousin Susan Lewis
(c.1782-c. 1855) in the early years of the 19th century. They
would have five children: Eliza (1808-94, m. the Reverend
Henry Davis of Burlington, N.J.); Solomon S. (1810-66, m.
Susanna G. Highgate); Charles (1811-65, unmarried);
Rachel (1813-45?) m.[?] William Lewis); and Jane (1814~
83, unmarried). Hiram owned 28 acres located across from
his parents farm on Limekiln Pike near the present Montier
Road.” After the death of his uncle Joseph, Solomon S.
Montier, the residuary legatee, lived in the original family
homestead.

Meanwhile, other members of the family were moving
to Germantown. Solomon Fry (1772-c.1845), who married
Susan Lewis Montier's sister Tamar, was enumerated in the
1800 Federal Census as the head of a household of four
living in Germantown.” William Fisher (1805-57), who
married Hannah Montier (b.1811), the youngest daughter of
Hiram Montier's brother Robert, operated an "eating house"
and oyster Cellar" in Germantown from about 1840. When
Ccnlre Street (now East Rittenhouse Street) was opened in
1847 Fisher purchased ground on the "lower" corner of
Centre and Main Streets (Germantown Avenue) and erected a
two-story building where he re—established his restaurant.”
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A cousin-in-law, David Knight, of Upper Dublin Township
in Montgomery County, operated a barber shop in the
basement of this building.l '

It was about this time that Hiram Montier and his
children started their association with Germantown. On May
17, 1850, Hiram's daughter Jane purchased building lot
number 39 on "the southeast side" of Centre Street from one
Jacob Reger, a Germantown painter and glazicr.u Four years
later, Jane sold the lot, now improved with a "certain two-
story messuage or tenement and lot" to her brother Charles
for $710 Charlas, who apparently stayed a bachelor, was
the owner and operator of a freight-hauling business. In the
1857 Philadelphia City Directory, he appeals as "'teamster,
Centre St. above Main, Germantown." w13 On August 6 of that
year, Charles purchased, for $10, a lot on Hancock Street
(later Baynton Street) adjacent to his Centre Street home,
from neighbor John Goodfellow. Charles subsequently
established a llvery stable on that lot.#

The Montiers were communicants of the African
Methodist Episcopal Church (A.M.E.). As the neighborhood
grew, more and more members of that denomination came
together to have prayer meetings in their homes. Subsequent—
ly they organized into what would later become New Bethel
AM.E. Church of Germantown.!” The leaders of the con—
gregation included Hiram and Charles Montier, who, along
with George Henry of Norristown, were instrumental in
purchasing the ground where the church first stood.

On February 21, 1854, William Lewis, Hiram's nephew
and probable son—in-law, purchased building lot number 71
on Centre Street for $210.26 William Lewis, described as
"farmer," was in truth a farm laborer, tramping from farm to
farm looking for a day's work. It is doubtful that the money
used to purchase the lot was actually his, since he never
bought or owned any other property either in Philadelphia or
Montgomery Counties. The money may have come from the
members of the congregation or from Hiram of Charles
Montier. However, why the need would arise to use William
Lewis as the purchaser of record is not clear.

The possibility that Lewis was acting as the "straw
man" in the purchase of the lot is bolstered by the fact that on
April 18, 1857, Lewis conveyed the lot to Charles and Hiram
Montier and George Henry, acting as trustees of New Bethel
AM.E. Church of Germantown, for $30077 in order to erect
a church building. Five years later, on October 9, 1862,



William Lewis and Charles Montier sold the church building
and the lot to the congregation for $1.18 On the deed, George
Henry is described as "Having left the United States of
America (and)... if still living, not a member of the
church..."”” and Hiram Montier is noted as "having died."

Hiram Montier died July 8, 1861, aged about eighty?’
and was buried in the family plot in Cheltenham Township.
Son Charles and a Cheltenham neighbor, Joseph Ottinger,
served as the executors of his estate. Sometime in June of
1865, Charles Montier suddenly died, and his sister Jane
bought out the estates of both Hiram and Charles, gaining
ownership of the family holdings in Cheltenham and
Germantown. She sold Charles' business at public auction,
took in washing and boarders at her Centre Street home,
while collecting rents on her Cheltenham property.ﬂ

Jane Montier died of breast cancer on September 30,
1883, aged sixty-eight years and ten months. She was buried
in the family plot in Cheltenham. 2 She was survived by her
elder sister, Mrs. Eliza Davis, and four daughters of her
deceased brother Solomon: Mary Elizabeth, widow of Ed-
ward E. Irvin, and long resident at 102 West Duval Street? ;
Anna Matilda, widow of George Hilton, who had lived with
her aunt Jane at the house on Centre Street (renumbered 302
East Rittenhouse Street)24; Amanda Susanna, a seamstress
and schoolteacher in the Philadelphia school system; and
Clarissa C., also a seamstress. They appointed the pastor of
Bethel, the Reverend Amos Wilson, as administrator of Jane
Montier's estate on the day of her burial.

Reverend Wilson,26 acting on behalf of the estate, sold
the Cheltenham land to George D. Heist in 1886, and
arranged for the sale of the Germantown house to Anna
Matilda Hilton. After Mrs. Hilton's death around 1891, her
son Edward F. Hilton, a barber with a shop on Germantown
Avenue near Haines Street, moved into the house with his
family —- his wife Anna J., sons George R. and Harrison H.,
and a daughter Florence M. After Edward Hilton's death
about 1895, his family lived in the house for about another
thirty years, taking in boarders to make ends meet.2’

Harrison Hilton and his family seem to have
subsequently owned the house; the last owners of the house
before it was condemned and demolished by the City of
Philadelphia to make way for public housing in 1960 were
listed as William E. Wilson and his wife Florence E., who
may have been Harrison Hilton's daughter.

The Montiers, their relatives, descendants and friends
were part of Germantown life for over a hundred and fifty
years. In a time when the dissolution of the family structure
of the urban African—American has been described as of
long standing, the continuity of the Montier family of
Germantown is a pertinent counterpoint to that argument.
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